
  

 
Board of Directors 
Wednesday, Oct. 3, 2018 

10:15a – 12:15p 
Hyatt Hotel – 15th Floor in Capitol View Room 

 
Scott McFarland, Chair 

 

Agenda 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS RELEVANT ATTACHMENTS REPORTING ACTION 
A = 

Approval 
D = 

Discussion 
I = 

Information 

I. Call to Order  Scott McFarland, Chair A 

II. Approval of Agenda  Scott McFarland, Chair A 

III. Consent Calendar 

 Approval of Minutes 

 REVISED 2019 Meeting 
Calendar 

 

 July 13, 2018, minutes 

 REVISED 2019 Meeting Calendar 

Scott McFarland, Chair I/D/A 

IV. CEO Report  Memo: Training & TA Report  
 

Carmela Castellano-
Garcia 

I/D 

V. Presentation of Financial Audit   Financial Audit Year Ended March 31, 
2018 

Matt Krehe, auditor I/D 

VI. Financial Presentation   Board Financial Presentation as of 
8.31.18  

 Balance Sheets as of 8/31/18 (3)  

Sandy Birkman I/D 

VII. SPEAKER: David Ford, Executive 
Director, CalHIPSO 

 PowerPoint Slides David Ford, CalHIPSO I 

VIII. Unity Workgroup Update  Unity Workgroup Issue Identification 
Grid 

Britta Guerrero, Unity 
Workgroup Chair 

I/D 

IX. CPCAs Diversity Policy revisions  Memo: Revised Diversity Policy 

 Fostering Diversity: Policy #1020 
(final and w/ markup) 

Buddy Orange, Vice 
President Human and 
Organizational 
Development 

I/D/A 

X. Approval of Committee Action 
Items and Brief Informational 
Reports 

 Audit 

 Clinicians 

 Executive 

 Finance/Ventures Finance 

 330 

 Governance 

 Government Programs 

 Legislative 

 SPARC 

 Workforce 

 Tony Weber 

 Ellen Piernot 

 Scott McFarland 

 David Vliet 

 Louise McCarthy 

 Ben Flores 

 Robin Affrime 

 Kevin Mattson 

 Tim Rine 

 Paulo Soares 
 

I/D/A 

XI. NACHC Update (recurring)  NACHC Report to CPCA Board of David Vliet, NACHC I 

Board of Directors Page 1 of 64



Directors  Region IX 
Representative 

XII. RAC Update (recurring)  Louise McCarthy, CEO, 
CCALAC 

I 

XIII. Outgoing Chair Report  Scott McFarland I 

NEW BUSINESS 

XIV. Adjourn 2017/18 Board; Seating 

of New 2018/19 Board  

 
Chair-elect from 2017-18 immediately 
assumes Chair role 

Scott McFarland, 
outgoing; Kerry 
Hydash, incoming  

 

XV. Election of 2018-19 Board 
Officers * 

A. Chair-Elect 
B. Secretary 
C. Treasurer 
D. Speaker 
E. Vice-Speaker 
F. Members-at-Large (3) 
 
* Officer positions are elected one at a 
time in the order noted above. 

 Kerry Hydash, Chair I/A 

XIV.    Adjourn Board (Kerry); convene 
Ventures Board (Scott) 

 

 Kerry Hydash, 
Incoming Chair and 
Scott McFarland, 
Outgoing Chair 

A 

Additional Attachments:  CPCA Code of Conduct 

 Board Attendance Policy 

  

 

Board of Directors Page 2 of 64



Board of Directors Meeting 
 

July 13, 2018 
 

Meeting Minutes 
 
Board Members Present :  Scott McFarland (Chair), Robin Affrime,  Doreen Bradshaw, Deb Farmer, Ben 

Flores, Cathy Frey, Naomi Fuchs, Jane Garcia, Britta Guerrero, Nik Gupta, Sherry Hirota, 
Kerry Hydash, Deb Lerner, Marty Lynch, Kevin Mattson, Louise McCarthy, Anitha 
Mullangi, Danielle Myers, Christine Noguera, Tim Rine, Ralph Silber, Graciela Soto-Perez, 
Mary Szecsey, Henry Tuttle, David Vliet and Paula Zandi 

 
Members Absent: Isabel Becerra, Paulo Soares, Richard Veloz 
Guests: James Luisi and Lathran Woodard, NACHC; Karen Lauerbach, Corinne Sanchez, Vernita 

Todd, Rakesh Patel, Rosa Vivian Fernandez, Linda Costa, Raphael Irving, Tim Fraser, 
Dolores Alvarado, Anthony White, Gary Rotto, Lucresha Renteria, Courtney Powers, 
Becky Lee, Warren Brodine 

 
Staff: Carmela Castellano-Garcia, Robert Beaudry, David Anderson, Sandy Birkman, Val 

Sheehan, Erin Perry, Kearsten Shepherd, Christina Hicks, Tiffany Ruvalcaba, Meghan 
Nousaine, Ginger Smith, Beth Malinowski, Victor Christy, Andie Patterson, Michael 
Helmick, Emily Shipman, Jodi Samuels, Andrea Chavez, Mary Ellen Mathias, Natalie 
Warren, Alicia Cuevas, Peter Dy, Emily Henry, Meaghan McCamman, and Heather 
Barclay 

 
 
1.  Call to Order 
Board Chair Scott McFarland called the meeting to order at 10:17a. 
 
2.  Approval of Agenda 
The Chair requested an agenda change moving the Closed Session to the first item on the agenda, and 
the Closed Session will also discuss the Epic agenda item.  
 

Motion  
A motion was made and seconded to approve the change to agenda item order. 
(Lynch/Bradshaw). The motion carried.  

 
The Board adjourned to Closed Session from approx. 10:16 – 11:00a. 
 
The Board Chair called the general meeting back to order at approx. 11:00a. 
 
3.  Approval of Consent Calendar 
Motion  
A motion was made and seconded to approve the Minutes from April 27, 2018, as presented. 
(Fuchs/Frey). The motion carried.  
 
 
 

Board of Directors Page 3 of 64



Motion  
A motion was made and seconded to approve the 2019 Board Calendar as presented. (Lynch/Frey). The 
motion carried.   
 
4.  CEO Report  
Carmela Castellano-Garcia, President and CEO, provided a brief report and thanked everyone for coming 
to the membership party that she hosted at her home the previous night. Carmela introduced CPCA’s 
new interns and two (2) of the four (4) were present and introduced themselves. Carmela referred to 
the “Planning for Health Center Leadersehip” Concept Paper in the agenda packet, noting it is CPCAs 
proposal to ensure that the Clinic Leadership Program doesn’t go away. She’d like CPCA to take some 
responsibility for helping build the workforce and in succession planning, developing future leaders, etc.  
. She noted that Sandra Hernandez, CEO of the California HealthCare Foundation (CHCF) is supportive of 
this effort. Members are welcome to contact Carmela with any feedback 
 
5.  Financial Presentation  
Sandy Birkman noted the requested quarterly financial presentation was included in the agenda packet 
and members had previously requested that all subsidiaries be shown on one document. The Finance 
Committee also reviewed the report in advance.  
 
6. Epic Discussion 
This item was handled in Closed Session. 
 
7. Association Health Plan Vendor Update 
In the interest of time, this item was not discussed but members were directed to the informational 
memo in the meeting packet.  
 
8. Strategic Plan Update 
In the interest of time, there was no specific discussion about the current Strategic Plan, but members 
were directed to the PowerPoint slides in the meeting packet should they have any questions about 
Strategic Plan-related progress.  
 
9. Approval of Committee Action Items.   
 
Audit – no report  
Clinicians - no report 
Executive – no report 
Finance – Committee Chair David Vliet presented one (1) item for consideration: 

Motion  
A motion was made and second to approve the financial reports for CPCA and CPCA Ventures. 
(Vliet/Szecsey). The motion carried. 

330 - no report 
Governance – Committee Chair Ben Flores presented one (1) item for consideration: 

Motion  
A motion was made and seconded to approve member Irma Cota for Emeritus membership 
status. (Flores/Farmer). The motion carried.  

 
 
 

Board of Directors Page 4 of 64



Government Programs – Committee Chair Robin Affrime presented one (1) item for consideration:   
  Motion  

A motion was made and seconded to that CPCA work with members to explore the concept of 
commonly reporting specific programs or areas where 340B savings ca be invested for the 
purposes of effective and coordinated 340B advocacy. (Affrime/Farmer). The motion carried.  

 
Legislative – Committee Chair Kevin Mattson presented four (4) items for consideration: 
1) Motion A motion was made and seconded for CPCA to take a “support” position on the Uniting and 

Securing America (USA) Act of 2018 and the Dream Act (Mattson/Garcia.). The motion carried. 
2) Motion A motion was made and seconded for CPCA Staff to direct CaliforniaHealth+ Advocates to 

pursue sponsorship of proposed legislation on FQHC/RHC and MCO Incentive Payments upon bill 
introduction (Mattson/Bradshaw). The motion carried.   

3) Motion A motion was made and seconded for CPCA to take a “support” position on AB 2029 
(Mattson/Hydash). The motion carried.  

4) Motion A motion was made and seconded to approve all staff recommended bill position changes 
as presented in the July 2 CPCA bill tracking report (Mattson/Hydash). The motion carried.  

 
SPARC – no report 
Workforce – no report 
 
10. NACHC Report  
David Vliet, NACH Region IX representation, gave a brief report and noted a more comprehensive 
written report in the meeting packet. He noted that we need to mobilize the Western region on a 
NACHC Executive Committee proxy vote campaign to support candidate Dr. Kimberly Chang from Asian 
Health Services. He and Carmela will serve as proxy voters and CPCA will help with outreach. He also 
urged non-NACHC members to consider joining. It was noted a minimum dues payment of 25% is 
required to vote.   
 
11.  RAC Report  
In the interest of time, RAC Chair Henry Tuttle reported all is well with RAC and yielded his time so the 
NACHC discussion can begin. 
 
12.  NACHC Listening Session with Board Chair James Luisi and Incoming Board Chair Lathran 

Woodard  
Board member and RAC Chair Henry Tuttle made introductions and introduced Jim and Lathran. Henry 
noted that today’s discussion should center around  “What is ideal future state of NACHC across the six 
domains.” He urged members to focus on being positive and constructive. Jim will be using the feedback 
during the NACHC Strategic Planning session in August.  Another goal is to create open lines of 
communication between the National Association, the PCA and its members. Jim addressed the Board 
and thanked them for the opportunity to be here today. He has less than a year left on his NACHC Board 
term, then Lathran will serve for a full 2 year term.  
 
Summarized below are some key points from the conversation and comprehensive flip chart notes were 
recorded by Health Center Partners of California (HCP) and will be combined with discussion notes from 
the RAC meeting and will be provided to Jim and Lathran by HCP. Members can also send additional 
feedback to Henry offline. 
 
 

Board of Directors Page 5 of 64



The conversation kicked off with the question – “What would a diverse NACHC look like?” 
 

 Reflect the diversity of its members 

 More young people in leadership roles 

 Clear succession plan 

 50 state strategy (both “red” and “blue”) 

 Women’s issues and more women represented in both policy work, and in staffing at NACHC 

 More caucusing from special populations and underrepresented groups 

 More representation of the West Coast and related issues (they seem very East Coast-centric) 

 Improved methods of engagement; meeting locations can be difficult for West Coast members 
to attend 

 Meaningful participation for Community Board members, including translation services at 
events. 

 A pipeline to develop leaders/people of color is needed.  
 
Goal Area: Inclusion 

 NACHC can feel like an inclusive club; lots of old stories and inside jokes are told around the 
members, leaving some to feel left out 

 Innovation plays a role in this area - are there ways to include West Coast members without 
requiring them to travel?  

 Hardships due to travel costs/time away  

 Too much social/down time at conferences – build in more value and be more thoughtful in 
planning the sessions 

 Do more to include a role for all levels of staff within the health centers beyond the C-suite. 
 
Goal Area: Positioning  

 Collective ideas from all states on how to move forward on value-based care. Bring the best 
thinking to the table, think ahead and be innovative. 

 Focus more on PPS and 330 and look at related emerging grassroots issues.  

 NACHC succession planning raised again; concern about lack of young leaders. 

 Need for more strategic partnerships in DC with organizations such as the National Council of La 
Raza (NCLR), for example.  

 More resources for how to expand/start a community clinic. 

 Mechanisms for inclusion and taking a firm(er) stand on issues; can NACHC do more to assist 
members in the event NACHC cannot take a strong stance on a given issue? 

 Strategy around “building strong states” 
 
Goal Area: Communications 

 Bidirectional communication needed; and possibly communication training is needed to address 
concerns. 

 More technology tools – a better website, interactive member portal, etc.  

 Explore avenues to increase meeting participation (not conference calls) but a chance to meet 
outside of P&I and CHI conferences. 

 Use polling technology at the January 2018 Strategy Session was a “plus” and members would 
like to see it used more frequently. 

 
 

Board of Directors Page 6 of 64



Goal Area: Content 
 

 Consider updating presentations and/or not resusing them at multiple events to maximize 
participants time (avoiding repetitive info.) 

 A new routine at P&I was suggested, including more targeting of consumer Board members.  

 Less vendor-heavy/focused events.  
 

Goal Area: Innovation  

 Partnerships – harness PCAs and HCCNs in a collaborative way 

 How to extend NACHC’s West Coast presence.  

 Looking toward the future (especially in regard to PPS). What is the future-looking care model?  

 Look at workforce meaningfully 

 Alternative delivery models; learning from past models 

 Move forward and lead the way in payment reform; help states via replication (avoid having 
every PCA “recreate the wheel”) 
 

Goal Area: Climate 

 What do our communities need, regardless of party? 

 Consider forming workgroups around these goal area 
 

Both Jim and Lathran thanked the Board for the opportunity to be here today and to have these 
discussions. They reassured members that NACHC is here to support health centers, regardless if they 
are members or not. They look forward to reviewing the discussion notes and sharing during the NACHC 
Strategic Planning process. 
 
13. Adjourn 
Board Chair Scott McFarland adjourned the meeting at approx. 12:30p. 
 
 

Board of Directors Page 7 of 64



 

CPCA 2019 BOARD MEETING CALENDAR 
 

 

Board & Committee Meetings 

 

Thursday - Friday, February 7-8, 2019     Sacramento – CPCA Office 

 

 Th., Feb. 7 

 10:00a – 5:00p – Board Retreat   (Committee’s will meet via phone in weeks prior to the Retreat) 

 6:30p – Board Dinner 

  

 Fri., Feb. 8 

 8:00a – 10:00a – Retreat Wrap-up, Debrief & Next Steps 

 10:00 – 11:30a – Board Meeting 

 11:30a – Adjourn; lunch on your own 

 

(NACHC Winter Strategy Mtg. - January 23-25, 2019 in Delray Beach, FL) 
 

 

Day at the Capitol / Board & Committee Meetings 

 

Wednesday, Apr. 24, 2019      Day at the Capitol & Reception  Sacramento  

Thursday-Friday, Apr. 25-26, 2019                Committee & Board meetings  Sacramento  

   

(NACHC P&I – March 27-31, 2019 in Washington, D.C.) 

 (NACHC Conf. for Agricultural Worker Health – May 6-8, 2019 in Albuquerque, NM) 

 

April 20-27, 2019  (Passover Week) 

April 21, 2019  (Easter Sunday)   

  

 

Board & Committee Meetings 

 

Thursday-Friday, July 11-12, 2019    Sacramento – CPCA Office 

 

(NACHC CHI – August 16-20, 2019 in Chicago, IL) 

 

** Annual Conference / Board & Committee Meetings 

 

Tuesday-Wednesday, Oct. 15-16, 2019  Board & Committee meetings Sheraton San Diego Hotel/Marina 

Thursday-Friday, Oct. 17-18, 2019   Annual Conference  Sheraton San Diego Hotel/Marina 

                

 (NACHC FOM/IT Conference – Oct. 23-25, 2019 in Chicago, IL) 

(NACHC PCA/HCCN Conference – Nov. XX, 2019 in XX) 

 

Sept. 30, 2019   (Rosh Hashanah) 

Oct. 9, 2019  (Yom Kippur) 

Oct. 14-20, 2019  (Sukkot) 

 
Additional CPCA Conference Dates 

 

CPCA Quality Care Conference  Feb. 21-22, 2019  Santa Rosa, CA 

CPCA CFO/Billing Managers May 14-17, 2019  San Diego, CA 

Region IX Conference  June 23-25, 2019  Newport Beach, CA 

Board of Directors Page 8 of 64



Date: September 20, 2018 

To:  CPCA Board of Directors 

From:  Erin Perry, Assistant Director of Education and Training 

Re:  CPCA Training Program 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Below are the training numbers for the 2nd quarter of the 2018-2019 fiscal year. Any questions or inquiries 
regarding the Training Program can be addressed to eperry@cpca.org. 
 

 
 

 

Board of Directors Page 9 of 64

mailto:eperry@cpca.org


Board of Directors Page 10 of 64



Board of Directors Page 11 of 64



Board of Directors Page 12 of 64



Board of Directors Page 13 of 64



Board of Directors Page 14 of 64



Board of Directors Page 15 of 64



Board of Directors Page 16 of 64



Board of Directors Page 17 of 64



Board of Directors Page 18 of 64



Board of Directors Page 19 of 64



Board of Directors Page 20 of 64



Board of Directors Page 21 of 64



Board of Directors Page 22 of 64



Board of Directors Page 23 of 64



Board of Directors Page 24 of 64



Board of Directors Page 25 of 64



Board of Directors Page 26 of 64



Board of Directors Page 27 of 64



Board of Directors Page 28 of 64



Board of Directors Page 29 of 64



Board of Directors Page 30 of 64



Board of Directors Page 31 of 64



Board of Directors Page 32 of 64



Board of Directors Page 33 of 64



Board of Directors Page 34 of 64



Board of Directors Page 35 of 64



Board of Directors Page 36 of 64



Board of Directors Page 37 of 64



Board of Directors Page 38 of 64



CPCA Ventures Advocates Combined CPCA Ventures Advocates Combined

Statement of Financial Position
ASSETS:

Current Assets

      Cash & Equivalents 2,310,532$   2,327,588$     134,852$  4,772,972$       3,439,641$       2,714,210$      76,007$        6,229,858$     

      Grants Receivable 461,156$       -$           461,156$          365,746$          365,746$        

      Dues and Accounts Receivable 785,085$       -$           785,085$          494,821$          3,250$          498,071$        

      Current Portion of Loan Receivable 2,351,527$     2,351,527$       2,319,269$      2,319,269$     

      Prepaid Expenses/Undeposited Funds 103,805$       24,777$    128,582$          99,130$            99,130$           

      Due from (to) affiliate 433,744$       (314,757)$       (118,987)$ -$                  94,977$            (89,901)$          (5,076)$         -$                 

Noncurrent Assets

     Certificates of Deposit 849,336$       -$           849,336$          877,708$          877,708$        

     Loan Receivable, Net 6,141,716$     -$           6,141,716$       5,488,144$      5,488,144$     

     Property and Equipment, Net 4,627,660$   -$           4,627,660$       4,627,660$       4,627,660$     

TOTAL ASSETS 9,571,318$   10,506,074$   40,642$    20,118,034$    9,999,683$      10,431,722$   74,181$        20,505,586$   

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities

     Accounts Payable 397,337$       -$                 3,138$       400,475$          -$                  -$                 -$              -$                 

     Accrued Expenses 294,233$       -$                 -$           294,233$          300,103$          -$                 -$              300,103$        

     Deferred Revenue 237,945$       -$                 -$           237,945$          785,194$          -$                 -$              785,194$        

     Current Portion of Loan Payable 138,606$       -$                 -$           138,606$          92,941$            -$                 -$              92,941$           

Loan Payable (net) 3,499,764$   -$                 -$           3,499,764$       3,489,864$       -$                 -$              3,489,864$     

TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,567,885$   -$                 3,138$      4,571,023$       4,668,102$      -$                 -$              4,668,102$     

-$                  

TOTAL NET ASSETS 5,003,433$   10,506,074$   37,504$    15,547,011$    5,331,581$      10,431,722$   74,181$        15,837,484$   

     Unrestricted 3,127,372$   10,506,074$   37,504$    13,670,950$    3,916,116$       10,431,722$   74,181$        14,422,019$   

     Temporarily Restricted 1,876,061$   0 0 1,876,061$       1,415,465$       -$                 -$              1,415,465$     

Cash on Hand - how many days organization could operate with no further cash 172 days 187 days

Current Ratio -  compares current assets to current liabilities to 7.99 8.76

   show ability to meet short-term financial obligations

-

Profit and Loss
Total Income 10,721,213$ 323,366$         911,183$  11,955,762$    4,827,151$       90,801$           469,602$      5,387,554$     

Total Expenses 10,656,096$ 189,252$         905,196$  11,750,544$    4,499,004$       165,152$         432,925$      5,097,081$     

Net Income 65,117$         134,114$         5,987$      205,218$          328,147$          (74,351)$          36,677$        290,473$        

March 31, 2018 August 31, 2018

Financial  8-31-18

Board of Directors Page 39 of 64



Aug 31, 18

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
1000.00 · Cash

1015.00 · Petty Cash 100.00
1016.00 · Checking - First Citizens 1,347,394.08
1017.00 · First Citizens - MMA 885,199.58
1060.00 · Morgan Stanley Smith Barney 877,708.04
1090.00 · NCBFSB MMDA Plus 1,206,946.92

Total 1000.00 · Cash 4,317,348.62

Total Checking/Savings 4,317,348.62

Accounts Receivable
1300.00 · Grants Receivable

1300.01 · BPHC 223,894.85
1300.10 · CDPH - MAT Project 141,851.00
1300.23 · CDPH - Emergency Preparedness 0.02

Total 1300.00 · Grants Receivable 365,745.87

1320.00 · Due from CPCA Ventures 89,900.91
1323.00 · Due from CA Health+ Advocates 5,076.01
1350.00 · Other Receivables

1380.00 · Revenue Cycle Management 54,451.19
1350.00 · Other Receivables - Other 179,748.95

Total 1350.00 · Other Receivables 234,200.14

1400.00 · IMIS Receivable
1400.00 · IMIS Receivable - Other 260,621.22

Total 1400.00 · IMIS Receivable 260,621.22

Total Accounts Receivable 955,544.15

Other Current Assets
1490.00 · Prepaid Expenses 81,500.00
1499.00 · Undeposited Funds 4,130.06

Total Other Current Assets 85,630.06

Total Current Assets 5,358,522.83

Fixed Assets
1600.00 · 1231 I Street Suite 400 6,407,085.91
1650.00 · Furniture 331,111.39
1660.00 · Equipment 406,259.55
1670.00 · Capitalized Interest 69,592.00
1700.00 · Accumulated Depreciation -683,801.00
1710.00 · Building Depreciation -1,840,902.00
1740.00 · Interest Amortization -59,732.00
1750.00 · Loss on Disposal of Assets -1,954.00

Total Fixed Assets 4,627,659.85

Other Assets
1810.00 · Deposits/PrePaid 13,500.00

Total Other Assets 13,500.00

TOTAL ASSETS 9,999,682.68

2:15 PM CALIFORNIA PRIMARY CARE ASSN
09/19/18 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of August 31, 2018

Page 1
Board of Directors Page 40 of 64



Aug 31, 18

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities

2025 · Accrued Vacation 291,694.10
2030.01 · Deferred/Unearned Revenue 54,000.00
2040.00 · Prepaid Dues 731,194.21
2055.01 · Payroll FSA 8,335.87
2200.00 · Sales Tax Payable 72.73

Total Other Current Liabilities 1,085,296.91

Total Current Liabilities 1,085,296.91

Long Term Liabilities
2510.00 · Loan Payable IronStone Bank 3,582,805.14

Total Long Term Liabilities 3,582,805.14

Total Liabilities 4,668,102.05

Equity
3000.00 · Opening Bal Equity 1,101,200.47
4000.00 · Net Assets 3,902,233.69
Net Income 328,146.47

Total Equity 5,331,580.63

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 9,999,682.68

2:15 PM CALIFORNIA PRIMARY CARE ASSN
09/19/18 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of August 31, 2018

Page 2
Board of Directors Page 41 of 64



 1:40 PM

 09/19/18

 Accrual Basis

 CALIFORNIA PRIMARY CARE ASSN

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 April through August 2018

Apr - Aug 18 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Income

4500.00 · Dues 883,090.81 883,090.81 0.00 100.0%

4600.00 · Grants 1,319,619.31 1,391,644.16 -72,024.85 94.82%

4621.00 · Contributions 578,933.34 430,556.18 148,377.16 134.46%

4750.00 · Sponsorship 35,000.00 90,666.70 -55,666.70 38.6% many are on calendar year

4900.01 · Interest 5,881.01 3,750.00 2,131.01 156.83%

4950.01 · Clinic Operations Support 240,809.81 273,333.31 -32,523.50 88.1%

4955.00 · Miscellaneous Income 33,586.64 31,249.97 2,336.67 107.48%

4960.00 · Conference Income 537,230.00 625,000.00 -87,770.00 85.96%

4999.99 · Training Income 618,092.88 344,166.70 273,926.18 179.59%

Total Income 4,252,243.80 4,073,457.83 178,785.97 104.39%

Gross Profit 4,252,243.80 4,073,457.83 178,785.97 104.39%

Expense

6100.00 · Salaries 1,740,245.32 1,798,077.05 -57,831.73 96.78%

6300.00 · Employee Benefits 407,319.34 475,825.21 -68,505.87 85.6%

6500.00 · Occupancy 156,632.56 144,618.71 12,013.85 108.31%

6505.10 · Building Repair 1,904.63 3,681.82 -1,777.19 51.73%

6510.10 · Communications 21,933.11 19,351.65 2,581.46 113.34%

6520.10 · Postage & Delivery 5,314.32 3,354.05 1,960.27 158.45%

6530.10 · Supplies 28,324.10 29,768.50 -1,444.40 95.15%

6540.00 · Printing 9,999.44 17,187.47 -7,188.03 58.18%

6552.10 · Equipment Lease/Maintenance 11,370.48 9,512.88 1,857.60 119.53%

6554.10 · Small Equipment 4,874.23 11,104.09 -6,229.86 43.9%

6560.10 · Insurance 7,370.09 11,312.37 -3,942.28 65.15%

6565.10 · Dues & Licenses 5,889.75 5,997.91 -108.16 98.2%

6570.10 · Subscriptions/Pubs 39,664.84 30,114.57 9,550.27 131.71%

6580.10 · Marketing and Outreach 71,428.00 77,083.25 -5,655.25 92.66%

7010.10 · Audit/Accounting 23,877.73 14,478.98 9,398.75 164.91% timing, audit is complete

7020.10 · Legal Services 3,500.00 4,166.70 -666.70 84.0%

7040.10 · Temporary Staffing 31,209.00 28,000.00 3,209.00 111.46%

7110.10 · Board of Directors 33,327.73 22,916.62 10,411.11 145.43% July bd mtg

7200.10 · Travel & Registration Fees 103,744.46 103,333.34 411.12 100.4%

7275.00 · Staff Development 14,531.56 22,916.62 -8,385.06 63.41%

7300.00 · Meetings 36,458.12 98,069.50 -61,611.38 37.18%

7350.00 · Training Expense 425,661.24 346,145.67 79,515.57 122.97% see income

7450.00 · Annual Conference 87,993.55 441,666.70 -353,673.15 19.92% timing

7500.00 · Consultants 641,335.40 927,144.87 -285,809.47 69.17%

7800.00 · Sub-Grants 0.00 404,166.62 -404,166.62 0.0% not paid grant to Advocates

7900.10 · Bad Debt 10,188.33 2,083.32 8,105.01 489.04% dues  dropped membership 

Total Expense 3,924,097.33 5,052,078.47 -1,127,981.14 77.67%

Net Income 328,146.47 -978,620.64 1,306,767.11 -33.53%

 Page 1 of 1
Board of Directors Page 42 of 64



CalHIPSO Update
CPCA Board Meeting

October3, 2018
Board of Directors Page 43 of 64



CalHIPSO Updates

• CTAP (Medi-Cal Meaningful Use) is still going.  
The program was just extended for two more 
years (until June 30, 2020).

• CalHIPSO is moving into new areas of Health 
IT:

– Statewide Provider Directory Utility

– Encounter Data

– Diabetes Measure Reporting

Board of Directors Page 44 of 64



90/10 Funding for HIE & CURES

CalHIPSO, CPCA, CMA, 
and many others worked 
together to get a $5 
million allocation in the 
2018-19 State Budget for 
HIE onboarding.  This will 
be matched 9-to-1 by the 
Federal Government, 
making a $50 million 
program.

Board of Directors Page 45 of 64



What is HIE Onboarding?

Generally, “onboarding” encompasses 
all of the technical needs and support 

required to bring a health care 
provider onto an HIE and help them 

engage in meaningful data exchange.

Board of Directors Page 46 of 64



How it Works

Providers agree 
to join an HIE

Included in the 
HIE’s project 

plan

HIE is paid 
directly by the 
State based on 

milestones

Board of Directors Page 47 of 64



Timeline

• State Budget took effect July 1st.

• APD Update submitted to CMS on 
October 1st.

• Expected approval by the end of the year.

• Program begins in January 2019.

• Program ends September 30, 2021.

Board of Directors Page 48 of 64



Steps You Can Take

• Research and contact your local HIE.

• Look for CTEN-participating HIEs:

http://www.ca-hie.org/initiatives/cten/

• Develop your internal budget and project plan 
(timelines are very short for this type of project).

Board of Directors Page 49 of 64

http://www.ca-hie.org/initiatives/cten/


What’s the Connection to CURES?

Convergence of Events:

1. October 1st: CA DoJ published API for HIT systems to 
interface with CURES.

2. October 2nd:  Mandatory Consult Began.
3. Upon Federal Approval:  90/10 funds will be available 

to help HIOs connect to the CURES API.

Board of Directors Page 50 of 64



To Receive More Updates

• Email info@calhipso.org to be 
added to the CalHIPSO 
monthly e-newsletter.

• Watch www.calhipso.org for 
more information.

Board of Directors Page 51 of 64

mailto:info@calhipso.org
http://www.calhipso.org/


Board of Directors Page 52 of 64



Unity Workgroup 

Attendees: Naomi, Jane, Paulo, Louise, Tim, Carmela, Britta 

Absent: Henry, Reymundo 

Purpose: To build unity among members while respecting differences/diversity of perspectives. This workgroup provides an opportunity to 
reflect on what works and what processes can be improved through improved collaboration and communication. Ultimately the workgroup is 
tasked with improving processes that facilitate overall effectiveness of Association mission, advocacy, and achievement of strategic goals. 
 

Issues/Challenges Signs of Progress Ideal Future State 

Members should feel safe to disagree and/or 
speak up  
 
Members report not feeling heard  

1) Create opportunities for meaningful 
conversation 
2) Clarify member position, support process to 
engage members who are in disagreement 
with Board direction 

 

What is the process for handling 
disagreement? How do we translate policy 
into practice? 

1) Board ownership- Board developed 
guidelines for behavior 
2) Organizational commitments to processes 

 

Lack of stakeholder engagement. Finding out 
decisions after they have been made or 
feeling like we don’t have a choice or a voice 

1) Committee Chairs create Pre-fab questions 
to membership for consideration to further 
engage members  
2) Create space for thoughtful conversation 

 

Association/membership taking different 
route and “undermining” strategy or Board 
decision 

1) Coordination and alignment of advocates 
and stakeholders-create clear communication 
process 
2) Create the ability to have difficult 
conversations 

 

Lack of trust in DHCS negotiations, feelings of 
being forced into negotiations or CPCA quick 
to negotiate 

1) Member agenda? How does it differ?  
2) Create talking points for and against a 
specific issue allow for additional conversation 

 

Association not getting feedback/input from 
clinics/members that do not attend meetings 
or participate 

1) RAC engagement 
2) CPCA engagement at local level 
3) CPCA taking credit for members work 

 

Board of Directors Page 53 of 64



 

Members feeling like CPCA is disconnected 
from issues happening locally 

1) CPCA support local clinic initiatives 
2) Create platform for clinic voice with CPCA 
taking supportive role 

Board Culture- Board Ownership 
 
 

1) Board retreat – Shared agreements and 
responsibilities determined by the members 
2) Board Buddy assignment 

 

Board/staff misalignment- Not a clear 
understanding of strategic direction (Epic), 
revenue generation activities 
 
 

1) Board Retreat 
2) Clear Strategic plan (Growth Plan) 
3) Identification of revenue generation 
priorities/opportunities 
4) Develop Committee tasked with process 

 

Board of Directors Page 54 of 64



 

Date:  September 21, 2018 

To:  CPCA Board of Directors 

From:  David “Buddy” Orange, Vice President of Human and Organizational Development  

Re:  Revised Diversity Policy  

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
I. Background 
In order to ensure that all staff are fully engaged and heard, CPCA embarked on an organization-wide 
initiative to define and operationalize diversity. This decision is informed by the results of an internal 
staff survey in which we asked staff to identify high priority organizational needs using the following 
criteria:  

 The organizational needs I select feels “doable “and can be built out this year 

 The organizational needs I select are important needs not only to me but many staff at CPCA 

 The organizational needs (when built out) will leverage, positively impact, and address other 
needs in the organization 

A number of high priority needs were identified including the following: 

 Articulation of a common definition of diversity that is broad and mutually agreed upon by 
all staff 

 Creation of recruitment, on-boarding, development, and retention strategies that value CPCA’s 
diversity across multiple existing identities, and that ensures staff are fully engaged and heard    

The Human and Organizational Development Team (HOD), a volunteer workgroup consisting of staff 
across all levels and functions at CPCA meet twice a month to build out high priority needs that are 
presented to all staff for vetting and feedback, which include the two organizational needs 
described above.   
 
II. Discussion/Issues 
Articulating a mutually agreed upon definition of diversity by all staff presented challenges and 
opportunities particularly because a working definition of “diversity” widely varies among staff.  We 
recognize the societal discrimination and roadblocks protected classes (age, race, ethnicity, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, etc.) continue to experience. The challenge and opportunity at CPCA is 
to define and operationalize diversity that mitigates discrimination yet ensures that all staff across 
identities are valued and heard. 
 
HOD chose to revise our current diversity policy so that it represents the definitive and collective 
voice of CPCA staff. The revision was an iterative process that included thoughtful, honest and 

Board of Directors Page 55 of 64



sometimes difficult conversations within the HOD workgroup regarding diversity and inclusion. HOD 
presented a latter edit of the policy revision to all staff during an all-staff meeting for input and 
feedback, which was followed by input from legal counsel. 
 
III. Recommendations 
We recommend that the Board approve this revision of the diversity policy document. This revision 
also serves as a value statement that will continue to inform the buildout of systems and structures 
to ensure continuous learning and growth. Our desire is that each staff member is valued, heard 
and engaged. 
 
 

Board of Directors Page 56 of 64



California Primary Care Association (AssociationCPCA) values equal employment opportunity as 
stated in our policies and demonstrated in our practices.  We intend to comply fully with all 
applicable laws in this regard.  Through these policies and laws, the AssociationCPCA is 
committed to promoting and fostering a diverse and inclusive workplace. The constituency the 
Associationthat CPCA services is diverse and varied.  To best serve this constituency, the 
AssociationCPCA works with local community groups and organizations who supportsthat 
support diversity and equal employment opportunity in order to recruit and retain qualified 
candidates for employment. 

We expectstrive for our workforce to not only represent our constituency, butCalifornia’s diverse 
population, including capabilities, culture, language, experience, and socio-economic 
background, while also to meetmeeting the highest standards and qualifications of our industry.  
Consequently, all employment-related decisions regarding recruitment, hiring, promotion, 
professional development, training, transfers, compensation, benefits, programs, and other 
terms and conditions of employment are made consistent with all lawful equal employment 
opportunity protections and in alignment with CPCA’s policies and procedures, with an eye 
toward fostering a diverse and varied workforce. CPCA will develop operating procedures to 
support the fullest extent those laws permit.  This includes an appropriate considerationgoal of 
relevant and innovative criteria (beyond any outmoded standards) that we believe will enhance 
our workplacefostering a diverse and the services we provide. varied workforce. Our initiatives 
are designed to provide opportunities for growth and advancement for all employeeseach and 
every employee. 

To this end, employees are expected to engage in respectful and meaningful communication, 
teamwork, and cooperation with all co-workers, regardless of any personal or individual 
differences.  Employees should welcome and value the expression of different perspectives and 
viewpoints based on the diverse cultures, experience, knowledge, innovations, background, 
expression, capabilities, and talents that constitute our workforce.  All employees of the 
AssociationCPCA have a responsibility to treat others with dignity and respect at all times. 
Employees are expected towill exhibit conduct that reflects inclusion during work and at all 
Association CPCA-sponsored or associated events.  From time to time, the AssociationCPCA will 
offer equal employment opportunity and diversity awareness training to enhance our knowledge 
and to strengthen our resolve to this commitment. CPCA is invested in an ongoing and iterative 
process of valuing and sustaining diversity within the organization as we move forward. 

 Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Left, Space After:  8 pt, Line spacing: 

Multiple 1.08 li

Board of Directors Page 57 of 64



California Primary Care Association (CPCA) values equal employment opportunity as stated in our 
policies and demonstrated in our practices.  We intend to comply fully with all applicable laws in 
this regard. CPCA is committed to promoting and fostering a diverse and inclusive workplace. The 
constituency that CPCA services is diverse and varied. To best serve this constituency, CPCA works 
with local community groups and organizations that support diversity and equal employment 
opportunity in order to recruit and retain qualified candidates for employment. 

We strive for our workforce to represent California’s diverse population, including capabilities, 
culture, language, experience, and socio-economic background, while also meeting the highest 
standards and qualifications of our industry. Consequently, all decisions regarding recruitment, 
hiring, promotion, professional development, training, transfers, compensation, benefits, 
programs, and other terms and conditions of employment are made consistent with all lawful 
equal employment opportunity protections and in alignment with CPCA’s policies and 
procedures, with an eye toward fostering a diverse and varied workforce. CPCA will develop 
operating procedures to support the goal of fostering a diverse and varied workforce. Our 
initiatives are designed to provide opportunities for growth and advancement for each and every 
employee. 

To this end, employees are expected to engage in respectful and meaningful communication, 
teamwork, and cooperation with all co-workers, regardless of any personal differences.  
Employees should welcome and value the expression of different perspectives and viewpoints 
based on the diverse cultures, knowledge, innovations, background, expression, and talents that 
constitute our workforce. All employees of CPCA have a responsibility to treat others with dignity 
and respect at all times. Employees will exhibit conduct that reflects inclusion during work and 
at all CPCA-sponsored events. CPCA will offer equal employment opportunity and diversity 
awareness training to enhance our knowledge and to strengthen our resolve to this commitment. 
CPCA is invested in an ongoing and iterative process of valuing and sustaining diversity within the 
organization as we move forward. 

 

Board of Directors Page 58 of 64



 

Page 1                                                                            NACHC Board Representative Report to the CPCA Board 
October, 2018  

 

NACHC Board Report to the CPCA Board 

David B. Vliet, CPCA Representative, Region IX 

October, 2018 

The National Association of Community Health Centers (NACHC) Board of Directors convened Orlando, 

Florida in conjunction with the NACH Community Health Institute (CHI) and conference on August 24, 

2018, one of four annual meetings held by the Board.  The agenda for the meeting was relatively light; 

this report will briefly cover key highlights of the most recent meeting and the overarching conference 

themes. 

General Updates 

The NACHC conferences generally carry several themes of importance that are covered in general 

session and breakout sessions and committee meetings.  This year’s CHI was no different and the 

NACHC Board meeting reflected these same themes, issues and concerns. 

The Fiscal Cliff 

Senior officials from the Bureau of Primary Care (BPHC), Jim Macrae and Tonya Bowers presented in 

several sessions throughout the conference with Mr. Macrae expressing concerns related to the 

“funding/fiscal cliff” (which is now seemingly a permanent descriptor for the reauthorization and re-

funding of the health center program).  The most recent funding period proved a steep and difficult 

challenge, with health centers squarely facing questions related to our efficacy and the renewed 

importance of proving the return on investment (ROI) that we provide particularly in light of the 

significant amount of funding and scale of our program.   

Mr. Macrae stated that there will be a greater emphasis on how the program will actually “save money” 

and that expectations are higher than in times past due to the most recent legislation.  The monetary 

investment is “significant” and expectations of program compliance (as described below) have come 

further into focus as evidenced by the changes in the Operational Site Visit (OSV), with greater focus on 

quality outcomes and the “C” word: Compliance. 

“One-One and Done” now known as “All Compliance, All the Time” 

The road to compliance is now codified in the Bureaus “Compliance Manual” that will serve as an “open 

book test”, a tool that HRSA describes as providing transparency, clarity and adherence to the program.  

While the repercussions of failing to correct matters of non-compliance at a given health center will 

cause them to their 330 grant funding, Bureau representatives seem confident that no center will be or 

should be, left behind. If a health center does lose their 330 funding, it’s because they’ve failed to meet 

the requirements and comply with what the Bureau believes are straightforward compliance guidelines, 

according to officials. 

Board of Directors Page 59 of 64



 

Page 2                                                                            NACHC Board Representative Report to the CPCA Board 
October, 2018  

 

Staff members from the Bureau that spoke to the NACHC Board appeared to feel reasonably assured 

that health centers should have success in achieving compliance, correcting compliance issues in timely 

fashion, and ultimately remaining in compliance. The shift, Bureau heads say, allows for greater focus on 

“quality” with the expectation that health centers will thus “be in compliance, all the time”.  Also, of 

note:  

 Starting September 18, 2018, health centers must directly employ the CEO (no longer permitted 

to contract for their services). 

 The health center’s Project Officers (PO’s) will no longer attend the OSV after January 1, 2019; 

rather, there will be a “federal presence” at the review to ensure “greater objectivity”. 

 Onsite “spot” fixes resolved by the health center Board of Director’s (as we have all learned to 

do by scheduling a Board meeting during the OSV) involvement, as in times past, will no longer 

be (needed) or permitted. 

 Instead, an “express compliance” module wills be launched allowing corrections during a 

prescribed period after the visit (14 days)  

 Awardees that receive one-year project periods: 

o Will receive an OSV within two to four months of their project period start date. 

o Must submit an overall plan for achieving compliance within 120 days of the award. 

(This plan is in addition to the specific actions required to lift the condition.) 

o Starting with FY19 SACs – and only for those Service Areas where the existing health 

center is the only applicant -- there will be a 14-day period during which the HRSA 

reviewer may communicate with the applicant, and offer them an opportunity to submit 

additional information to demonstrate compliance. This communication may take place 

only through the EHB External Correspondence Management module. 

o Health centers are strongly encouraged to resolve all outstanding conditions by the time 

that they submit their SAC/RD applications, as any opportunity to have a condition lifted 

after that time -- and before it results in a one-year project period – will be very 

limited.* 

 A greater number of site visits will be made as HRSA was criticized for only reviewing 11% of the 

health centers. 

 Mr. Macrae discussed the Bureau’s ongoing interest in looking at “targeted need” to ensure 

there are not duplications of service in given area (aka service overlap)  

CMS Deputy Secretary Strongly Supports the Health Center Program 

Mr. Macrae advised the Board that Health and Human Services Deputy Secretary, Eric Hargan, is a 

strong supporter (“big fan”) of community health centers and makes an effort to see health centers in 

the various market as he travels and he’s very enthusiastic about the work health centers do. 

Additionally, HRSA has given several awards for Quality to health centers in the various regions.  See this 

link:  https://www.hrsa.gov/enews/past-issues/2018/september-6/health-centers-quality.html 

Board of Directors Page 60 of 64

https://www.hrsa.gov/enews/past-issues/2018/september-6/health-centers-quality.html


 

Page 3                                                                            NACHC Board Representative Report to the CPCA Board 
October, 2018  

 

 

The 340B Program 

Concerns about the 340B program and the small number of pharmacy benefit managers (PBM’s) that 

are involved in the program were raised at the NACHC Board meeting.  Mr. Van Coverden, CEO of 

NACHC, mentioned that three PBM’s currently control 70% of the 340B program.  Several of these have 

apparently sought to increase dispensing and other related fees.   

Of further note: 

 “CVS-Caremark [is] dramatically reducing reimbursement for 340B drugs dispensed by 

healthcenters’ in-house, closed-door pharmacies – often to rates below health centers’ costs. In 

late July, health centers in at least four states who operate in-house, closed-door pharmacies 

(meaning pharmacies owned by a health center that serve only health center patients) received 

letters stating that effective September 1, CVS-Caremark will dramatically reduce 

reimbursement for drugs dispensed through these pharmacies (except for those covered under 

Medicare Part D). Based on the examples NACHC has seen to date, it appears that the new rates 

will be Average Wholesale Price (AWP) minus 30% for brand-name drugs, and minus 20% for 

generics, with a 50-cent dispensing fee. For many drugs, this reimbursement will be less than 

health centers’ actual costs. Health centers are required to either accept these lower rates, or 

withdraw from all CVS-Caremark plans, which cover roughly one-third of commercially-

reimbursed pharmaceuticals nationwide. NACHC is currently working with other 340B provider 

groups to determine how broadly CVS-Caremark is applying this new policy, and to formulate 

appropriate responses. “ * 

Election Effort and Results 

Kimberly Chang, MD, was elected to the NACHC Board as Vice-Speaker during the annual House of 

Delegates meeting with an overwhelming majority of votes.  This role places her on the Executive 

Committee of the NACHC Board and is the first time in several years California has had representation at 

this level.  Dr. Chang met with the various caucus groups seeking support during CHI and was very well 

received.  She soundly defeated the competing candidate and will hold the seat for the next two years. 

This win signifies that the effort to gather voting proxies giving permission to cast ballots from the 

qualifying health centers across our association at the House of Delegates (with each ballot carrying four 

votes) was very successful -- and is an important reminder of the voting strength of the health centers in 

California with the support of CPCA, the networks and consortia across the state.  Congratulations to Dr. 

Chang who proved to be a strong and dynamic candidate. 

Chairman’s Listening Tour 

Board of Directors Page 61 of 64



 

Page 4                                                                            NACHC Board Representative Report to the CPCA Board 
October, 2018  

 

NACHC Chairman Jim Luisi held the final listening tour, seeking input from a cross-section of leaders 

from across the country.  The session was facilitated by Henry Tuttle, CEO of Health Center Partners of 

Southern California and the input and data gathered will be used by Mr. Luisi as he seeks to update  

NACHC’s strategic plan. 

Conversation in Leadership Diversity - Part #3 

My colleague Manny Lopes, East Neighborhood Health Center, Boston, MA, and I held the third 

installment of “Conversations in Leadership Diversity” in Orlando, with approximately 100 in 

attendance, featuring guest speaker, Herman Williams, MD, author of the book “Clear!”.  The next 

meeting will be held in Washington DC in March, 2019, with a specific emphasis on diversity, equity, 

inclusion and development of more next-generation leaders into the community health center 

movement. 

NACHC CEO and Board Chair Comments of Interest 

 HRSA plans to re-work the UDS for the first time in 20 years. 

 The Executive Committee of the Board will resume work on its CEO succession plan. 

 Dan Hawkins will retire January 1, 2019, as SVP of Public Policy and Research.  Jana Blasi will 

assume the role as VP. 
 Steve Carey has been appointed as Chief Strategy Officer. 

 NACHC is actively seeking to place the National Advocacy Director position previously held by 

Amanda Pears Kelly. 

Conclusion 

This concludes my brief written summary of the most recent meeting of the NACHC Board of Directors 

and NACHC conference activity.  

I appreciate the opportunity to represent our health centers and primary care association on the NACHC 

Board and welcome any questions or feedback. 

Respectfully submitted, 

David B. Vliet, MBA, CPCA Board Member and Executive Committee Member, Tiburcio Vasquez Health 

Centers, San Leandro/Hayward/Union City, CA 

*Courtesy NACHC CEO report, August, 2018  

Board of Directors Page 62 of 64



 
 

 

 

 

 

THE CODE OF CONDUCT 

 

 

 

 

- Mutual respect and courtesy shall prevail at all times between all participants. 

- Listen fully to others. 

- Encourage diverse perspectives. 

- Disagree openly and courteously. 

- Share all relevant information.  Confidentiality shall be strictly adhered to. 

- Strive for consensus. 

- Ask, rather than assume. 

- Discuss interests, not positions. 

- Be a good team player. 

- Treat the staff with dignity and respect. 

- Maintain appropriate communication boundaries with staff concerning   

      internal operational and personnel issues. 

 

Board of Directors Page 63 of 64



Attendance at Board of Directors Meetings Policy 

 

Members of the Board of Directors of the California Primary Care Association (CPCA) have a 

responsibility to the members who elected them to oversee the management and affairs of the 

Association and to set policies which guide CPCA in all of its activities. 

 

1. All members of the CPCA Board of Directors have a duty to be present at all official meetings of 

the Board.  The current practice is to have four Board meetings each year, however special 

Board Meetings may be called as necessary for items that are time sensitive. 

2. All members of the CPCA Board of Directors are strongly encouraged to attend Committee 

meetings. 

3. Per Bylaws, “Directors shall participate in at least 50% of regularly scheduled Board of Directors 

meetings in a given Board year.  Directors who do not participate as so described shall be 

subject to removal from office by a majority of the Board.”  A Board year will be considered 

October through September 30th.  The Board of Directors Job Description outlines a desire for a 

higher attendance rate at 75% in order for a Director to act in the best interest of CPCA as a 

whole and to exercise the legal and financial duties of the organization. 

4. All minutes will reflect not only those Directors present, but those absent. 

5. The Board Chair at his/her sole discretion, may (a) excuse (i.e., not count as a missed meeting) 

one (1) absence per Director per year and/or (b) grant a leave of absence for a Director without 

forfeiture of the Director’s Board seat.  

6. After one absence by a Director, a letter will be sent by staff to remind them of this policy. 

7. After two absences, a call will be made by the Chair of the Board. 

8. On the third absence in any given year, continued participation of any board member who has 

been unable to be present will be put to vote of the Board for removal. 

9. Attendance will be tracked and reviewed regularly and a report made to the Governance 

Committee and Chair.  All candidates running for reelection will have their attendance records in 

the prior year noted in election materials.  Directors not meeting the 50% criteria for each year 

of their prior term will not be eligible to run for re-election.   

 

Board of Directors Page 64 of 64




